Public Document Pack

Democratic Services Section
Chief Executive's Department
Belfast City Council
City Hall
Belfast
BT1 5GS



11th June, 2018

MEETING OF CITY GROWTH AND REGENERATION COMMITTEE

Dear Alderman/Councillor,

The above-named Committee will meet in the Lavery Room - City Hall on Wednesday, 13th June, 2018 at 5.15 pm, for the transaction of the business noted below.

You are requested to attend.

Yours faithfully,

SUZANNE WYLIE

Chief Executive

AGENDA:

1. Routine Matters

- (a) Apologies
- (b) Minutes
- (c) Declarations of Interest

2. **Presentation**

(a) Destination Hub: Outline Business Case (Pages 1 - 4)

3. Requests to Present to Committee

- (a) Ulster University Economic Policy Centre (UUEPC) Economic Briefing (Pages 5 8)
- (b) Folktown (Pages 9 10)
- (c) Belfast Marathon (verbal update)

4. **Growing Businesses and the Economy**

(a) Working and Learning (Verbal update)

5. **Positioning Belfast to Compete**

- (a) Events and Festivals Strategy Update (Report to follow)
- (b) International Relations Nashville Invitation (Pages 11 14)
- (c) Five Year Cultural Programme (Pages 15 24)

6. Strategic and Operational Issues

- (a) Belfast Cycling Strategy (Pages 25 30)
- (b) Year End Committee Plan Report (Pages 31 64)
- (c) Restricted Recruitment Panel Nominations (Pages 65 68)

Agenda Item 2a



CITY GROWTH AND REGENERATION COMMITTEE

Subject: Destination Hub: Outline Business (pdate				
Date:		13 th June 2018						
Repor	ting Officer:	Alistair Reid - Strategic Director Place & Economy						
Conta	ct Officer:	James Collier - Dev	elopment Manager					
Restric	Restricted Reports							
Is this	report restricted?			Yes No X				
If	Yes, when will th	e report become unre	stricted?					
	After Commit	tee Decision						
	After Council	Decision						
	Some time in	the future						
	Never							
Call-in								
Is the c	lecision eligible fo	r Call-in?		Yes X No				
1.0	Durnage of Bana	ut au Cummany of mai	n laguag					
1.0	Purpose of Repo	rt or Summary of mai	n issues					
1.1	Members will be	aware that feasibility	work is ongoing on a	major cultural and visitor				
		•		nip with Tourism NI have				
		loitte together with CHI	Consulting to take this	work forward. The outputs				
	will include:	_						
	– Emerging	•						
	Governance and Organisational Structure							
	– Outline Bu	siness Case (OBC)						
1.2	The report will be	accompanied by a pres	sentation by expert advis	ors from the project team,				
	who will update M	lembers on the work u	ndertaken to date, their	emerging thinking around				
	the three areas of	work above, and timet	able for completion of th	e OBC for inclusion in the				
	Belfast Region City Deal. Page 1							

2.0 Recommendations 2.1 The Members are asked to: Note the work undertaken to date by the expert advisory team producing the Destination Hub Outline Business Case, including extensive engagement with key statutory and cultural stakeholders, and the intention to include this project within the Belfast Region City Deal. Agree to receive a further report that sets out details of the outline business case, recommendations and a future work programme. 3.0 Main report 3.1 In September 2015, Belfast City Council published the Belfast City Centre and Regeneration Strategy. This Strategy recommended that serious consideration should be given to developing an international visitor destination in the city centre to complement Titanic Belfast. Early feasibility work was conducted culminating in the completion of a Strategic Outline Case (SOC) in June 2016 that endorsed this goal. 3.2 The SOC indicated that a visitor destination that can be an attractor of people and investment has the potential to make a real and lasting impact through increasing visitor trips/stays as well as increasing footfall in the city centre, thereby supporting retail as well as the wider daytime and evening economy. 3.3 This project aims to deliver an exciting, engaging and accessible set of world-class facilities that integrates with existing organisations and builds on the growing visitor economy. It should create opportunities for new jobs and skills development, as well as be aligned and add to the wider visitor and neighbourhood tourism offer across Belfast. It will provide both local and international visitors with an outstanding visitor experience and the opportunity to engage with our rich cultural heritage. This addition to the tourism offer will encourage people to stay longer, increase the dwell time and spend more in the local economy. Belfast City Council, in partnership with Tourism NI, commissioned a team of experts to take 3.4 forward the recommendations from the SOC of 2016 to progress and conclude a number of workstreams in order to take the delivery of a new city centre visitor destination to the next stage. These workstreams and associated outputs are set out below, and progress against these outputs will be provided as part of the presentation to Committee. Page 2

Output A: Outline Business Case

The Outline Business Case will be compliant with the Northern Ireland Guide to Expenditure Appraisal and Evaluation, which is an essential element to securing future investment in any potential capital project of this nature.

Output B: Governance, structure and organisational design

3.6 This will include assessment and identification of the optimal structures for the delivery of a new visitor destination to include governance during procurement, delivery and the ultimate ownership and operation of the facility.

Output C: Concept development

- 3.7 This will include a review of previous feasibility work and further consideration of the key components of the visitor destination, including recommendations on how any investment could support the wider development of the creative and cultural sectors in Belfast. Therefore consideration is being given to the activity currently being delivered by various stakeholders and how a new visitor destination could:
 - help to foster city, regional and international collaborations;
 - provide a facility of the scale and quality to enable audience development;
 - help to address skills and employability gaps identified in these sectors
 - supplement and tie-in to the wider neighbourhood tourism offer in the city.
- A stakeholder group is in place to oversee the development of the work and this group includes representation from key statutory and cultural stakeholders. Further engagement has also taken place with the cultural and heritage sectors to help develop the emerging concept for the Destination Hub and its component parts. Further detail on the approach to date will be outlined by the consultant team in their presentation. If it is decided to take this project forward following the conclusion of the OBC then further engagement and communication activity would be undertaken across the city to help develop the concept and content of the Destination Hub. This will include delivering a programme of extensive civic engagement as well as detailed consultation with the wider cultural and tourism sectors.

3.9 <u>Programme and next steps</u>

The expert team will be working on the above three workstreams over the coming months ahead of a further report to CGR and SP&R committees in August. A particular focus will be engagement with government economists over the detailed financial, economic and commercial elements of the OBC. This will enable the Destination Hub to be included as a project within the Belfast Region City Deal in September. Work is also ongoing to assess the relationship of the Destination Hub to tourism and cultural infrastructure across the city to ensure that any investment also supplied and strengthens this existing offer,

Financial & Resource Implications
Costs associated with the outline business case are included in departmental budgets with
partnership funding from Tourism NI.
Equality or Good Relations Implications
There are no equality or Good Relations implications.
Appendices – Documents Attached
None

Agenda Item 3a



CITY GROWTH & REGENERATION COMMITTEE

Subje	ect:	Request to present – Ulster University (UUEPC)	Economic Policy Centre	
Date:		13 June 2018		
Repoi	rting Officer:	John Greer, Director of Economic Develop	nent	
Conta	act Officer:	Claire Patterson, Business Research & De	velopment Manager	
Restri	cted Reports			
Is this	report restricted?		Yes No X	
	If Yes, when will the	report become unrestricted?		
	After Committe	ee Decision		
	After Council I			
	Some time in t	he future		
	Never			
Call-ir	ı			
Is the	decision eligible for	Call-in?	Yes X No	
1.0	Purpose of Repor	t or Summary of Main Issues		
1.1	As part of the ongo	ing commitment to hold regular strategic brie	fings, it is proposed that	
	Committee receive	an annual economic briefing and presentation	on from the Ulster University	
	Economic Policy C	entre (UUEPC) at their meeting in Septembe	r 2018. This provides an	
opportunity to consider the city and regional economic conditions and forecasts to inform				
future direction and priority setting around key inter-related programmes of work for the				
	Council - growing t	he economy, employability & skills and city d	evelopment.	
1.2	Members will be av	vare that the Council have agreed to contribu	ite to the work of the Ulster	
	University Econom	ic Policy Centre (UUEPC) to enhance the on	going analysis and	

monitoring of the city economy and support the underpinning evidence base for the Belfast Agenda and the emerging economic outcomes for the city. 1.3 The briefing will also provide an opportunity for the Committee to consider the work that the UUEPC have carried out on the development of a local skills barometer. This model has been developed at a Belfast City Region level to forecast the skills required by the economy and the likely availability of the skills in the population over the next 10 years. This will be used to inform, target and measure employability and skills interventions for Belfast. It has been used in the development of the Belfast Region City Deal proposals. 1.4 Members are asked to consider the economic briefing in the context of the current uncertainties associated with the decision for the UK to leave the EU and the pressing need to develop new approaches to address the city's persistent challenges as a result of high levels of economic inactivity, low skills levels and the need to grow the private sector. 1.5 The Committee has expressed the importance of and their interest in hearing from a diverse range of perspectives on economic issues and prospects for Belfast and the region. 2.0 Recommendations 2.1 Members are asked to: Agree to receive a presentation from the Ulster University Economic Policy Centre at the September Committee meeting; and Consider and make suggestions for any additional economic input at a future meeting. 3.0 **Main Report** 3.1 The Ulster University Economic Policy Centre (UUEPC) is an independent economic research centre focused on producing evidence-based research to inform policy development and implementation. It engages with all organisations that have an interest in enhancing the economy and its work is relevant to government, business and the general public. The Centre's Advisory Board includes Belfast Harbour Commissioners, Department for the Economy, First Trust Bank, Ulster University and Department of Finance. Belfast City Council is the first local government member. 3.2 The Centre has developed a macroeconomic model for Northern Ireland providing a comprehensive set of economic data and forecasts, which will help assess the impact of potential policy initiatives on the Northern Ireland economy and contribute effectively to the

policy debate. The Centre has also developed a Skills Barometer for Northern Ireland, which assesses the current and emerging skill needs by sector as well as forecasting future skill needs in Northern Ireland. This work will directly inform how the Council approaches its key priorities to address the city challenges of supporting business start-up and growth and addressing the skills and employability issues in the city.

3.3 Members are asked to consider the economic briefing in the context of the current uncertainties associated with Brexit and the pressing need to develop new approaches to address the city's persistent challenges of high levels of economic inactivity, low skills levels and the need to grow the private sector. The new Brexit committee may also wish to avail of the opportunity for these briefings.

3.4

The factors that influence economic growth do not solely lie within the local government's control, therefore strengthening business relationships and local-central government relationships is a central tenant of the Belfast Agenda as well as being critical to build the city's role as the regional driver.

3.5

The UUEPC acts as a 'critical friend' for the Council, which has been central to the development of the Belfast Agenda and the key priority of growing the economy. This ensures that the priorities, programmes and plans are evidence based and targeting the areas that will have maximum impact; for example, targeting business support and employability & skills programmes. The UUEPC has been involved in a number of specific pieces of work that have informed the Belfast Region City Deal and the Council's plans and programmes. This includes:

- producing economic forecasts to inform the Local Development Plan to shape the city's future development;
- assessing the under-represented groups in enterprise and self-employment;
- analysis of the key employment sectors emerging from the Belfast Agenda target of 46,000 new jobs in the economy;
- briefings on the potential opportunities and implications of Brexit for Belfast and the
 City Region; and
- developing a localised skills barometer for Belfast and the City Region.

3.6

It is proposed that the presentation and briefing will draw on these key research pieces to outline the work of the UUEPC, the key issues for the Northern Ireland economy and economic forecast as well as what this means for Belfast as the regional economic driver.

Financial and Resource Implications
Members will be aware that the Council is represented on the Board of the UUEPC and
has previously agreed to contribute £25,000 per annum for a two-year period (which will be
subject to renewal in 2019/20).
Equality or Good Relations Implications
There are no equality and good relations implications.
Appendices – Documents Attached
None

Agenda Item 3b



CITY GROWTH AND REGENERATION

Subjec	t:	Request to present – Folktown Regeneration	n initiative						
Date:		13 th June 2018							
Report	ting Officer:	Alistair Reid - Strategic Director Place & Ec	onomy						
Contac	ct Officer:	Callie Persic - Regeneration Project Officer							
Restric	Restricted Reports								
Is this	Is this report restricted?								
11	f Yes, when will th	e report become unrestricted?							
	After Commit	tee Decision							
	After Council								
	Some time in	the future							
	Never								
									
Call-in									
Is the c	decision eligible fo	or Call-in?	Yes X No						
1.0	Purpose of Repo	ort or Summary of main Issues							
1.1	The Committee is	s asked to consider the request from Folkto	wn Regenerative Initiative to						
	attend a future me	eeting of the City Growth and Regeneration C	Committee in order to present						
	an update to Mem	nbers on their work and future ambitions.							
2.0	Recommendatio	ns							
2.1	Committee is ask	ed to							
	A and a to to	accive a presentation from Fall-town Danas	rativa Initiativa at a fetura						
		eceive a presentation from Folktown Regene	rative initiative at a future						
	committee	meeting.							

3.0	Main report
3.1	At the West Area Working Group on 22 March 2018 Members received an update on the
	proposals for the Folktown Regeneration Initiative, who would like Committee support for
	the following activities:
	Promote the area as an emerging cultural quarter and independent retail.
	Develop meanwhile activity
	Develop a proposal for a permanent event space and community hub
3.2	The West Area Working Group recommended that Folktown present their work to CGR so
	that their proposed future activities could be considered alongside wider work underway in
	the city centre in terms of meanwhile/city animation, business support and promotional
	activity, as well as work underway to consider the potential Capital of Culture legacy
	programme.
3.3	To note, Folktown has since the meeting in March with West Area Working Group secured
	£5,000 from the Department for Communities to support promotional activity in relation to
	the emerging cultural quarter.
	Financial & Resource Implications
3.4	None – this is a request to present in the first instance.
	Equality or Good Relations Implications
3.5	There are no equality or good relations implications.
4.0	Appendices – Documents Attached
	None

Agenda Item 5b



CITY GROWTH & REGENERATION COMMITTEE

Subjec	l.	International Relations – Nasilville Inv	tation
Date:		13 June 2018	
Report	ing Officer:	John Greer, Director of Economic Dev	elopment
Contac	nal Relations Manager		
Restric	eted Reports		
Is this	report restricted?		Yes No X
l1	Yes, when will the	report become unrestricted?	
	·	•	
	After Committe After Council D		
	Sometime in th		
	Never		
Call-in			
Is the o	decision eligible for	Call-in?	Yes X No
4.0	Dumana of Danasi	an Community of Main January	
1.0	Purpose of Report	t or Summary of Main Issues	
1.1	The purpose of this	report is to seek Members' approval fo	or an outward business-focussed
		m 26 - 30 August 2018.	
2.0	Recommendations	5	
2.1	The Committee is a	sked to:	
	• Approve the	attendence of the Obein of Committee	o or nominos and one officer to
	Approve the	e attendance of the Chair of Committee	e of nonlinee and one officer to
		e attendance of the Chair of Committee ne outward business visit to Nashville w	

	businesses, from 26 - 30 August 2018. This is subject to confirmation of stakeholder commitment and programme value.
3.0	Main Report
3.1	Members will recall the November 2016 approval of a new International Relations Framework for the period 2016 - 2021.
3.2	The aim of this Framework is to continue to promote Belfast on the international stage with other stakeholders as a place to invest, work, visit and study. The Framework will deliver primarily on the formal relationships already in existence through our Sister City Agreements with Shenyang, Boston and Nashville, the Memorandum of Understanding with Dublin, and developing relationships with the City of London. New areas of opportunity will be considered on their merits and relevance to Belfast.
3.3	Members will be aware that, at the 8 March 2018 meeting of the City Growth and Regeneration Committee, an update report on International Relations activity for the previous six months was presented and the outline plans for the coming period were agreed.
3.4	As part of the agreed programme of activity for 2018/19, Belfast City Council hosted a <i>Nashville in Belfast Week</i> (28 April - 6 May 2018), showcasing joint activity across a range of sectors including music, food creative industries, education study abroad opportunities, doing business in Nashville and pursuing tourism opportunities. A detailed report on this highly successful week will be presented to members in due course, once all outputs have been measured.
3.5	As part of the Nashville programme, a series of focussed business meetings were held with Belfast City Council, Invest NI, Catalyst Inc., CSIT, Venture Capitalists and both Universities. The Nashville delegation included a leading entrepreneur in the field of healthcare, who is also a venture capitalist with interest in investing in business start-ups in Belfast. Since the visit, a proposal has been presented to Belfast City Council by the Nashville Sister Cities Board to invite Belfast City Council, economic agencies and a number of Belfast businesses in the healthcare/life health sciences sector to attend a conference in August 2018, and follow a wider but focused economic programme.
3.6	The conference entitled "Health: Further" is being held during the week of 26 August 2018

as part of a wider series of events happening in Nashville that week called "Nashville Is... Week", a week of entrepreneurial celebration in the city. The Nashville Board and this leading entrepreneur have invited a delegation to attend the week free of charge, but to focus specifically on opportunities for Belfast businesses in health and healthcare, as Nashville is an economic driver for the USA in this field. The proposal asks that a Belfast delegation is made up of 1 Belfast City Council elected member and official, 4 healthcare entrepreneurs, 1 Venture Capitalist in this field, 1 representative from the Department of Health in Northern Ireland, 1 representative from Invest NI in this sector and 2 other representatives in the sector recommended by Belfast City Council and partners. There will be a maximum number of 14 delegates.

- 3.7 The Sister Cities Nashville Board and Nashville City Council are fully supportive of this invitation and are encouraging Belfast to attend to drill down into real cooperation and business opportunities. This is the outcome of 2 years of developing relationships and targeting the right people in business, government and academia and may lead to direct financial investment in Belfast companies.
- 3.8 With regard to the key International Relations activities for 2018/2019, all activity will be driven by a number of the priority outcomes set out in the Belfast Agenda. This proposal from Nashville will contribute to the 'Growing the Economy' theme of the Belfast Agenda. These focus on:
 - Building the City's position as a magnet for FDI
 - Maximising the City's connections worldwide to drive growth
 - Positioning the City internationally as a key tourism, education and business destination
 - Helping local companies to internationalise their business.

3.9 Financial and Resource Implications

It is proposed that Members approve and agree to provide financial support to the Nashville outward visit for BCC related participation at a maximum cost of £3500. This resource will be covered within the agreed 2018/19 International Relation's Unit budget allocation, included in the budget estimates which were approved by the Council in February 2018.

3.10 Equality and Good Relations Implications

The International Relations Framework was equality screened.

4.0	Appendices – Documents Attached			
	None			

Agenda Item 5c



CITY GROWTH AND REGENERATION COMMITTEE

Update on the development of a five year cultural programme

Subje	ct:	for Belfast					
Date:		13 June 2018					
Repoi	rting Officer:	John Greer, Director of Economic Develop	ment				
Conta	ct Officer:	Eimear Henry, Cultural Regeneration Mana	ager				
Restric	cted Reports						
Is this	report restricted?		Yes		No x		
l·	f Yes, when will th	e report become unrestricted?					
	After Commit						
	After Council	Decision					
	Some time in						
	Never						
Call-in							
Is the d	decision eligible fo	or Call-in?	Yes	Х	No		
1.0	Purpose of Repo	ort or Summary of main Issues					
1.1	The purpose of th	is report is to provide further detail to Members o	on the	planne	d		
	programme of act	tivity to support the development of a significant	5-year	cultura	al		
	initiative of interna	ational profile, that seeks to build on the work und	dertake	en as p	art of the		
	European Capital of Culture competition.						
2.0	Recommendatio	ns					
2.1	The Committee is	asked to:					
	- Note the conte	ents of this report and the support of the cultural	sector	and ag	gree to		
	receive further	r updates including a detailed options appraisal i	n Dece	ember	2018.		
	1						

 Agree for officers to further scope options for Belfast to participate in the Culture in Sustainable Cities programme (Culture 21) and delegate authority to the Strategic Director of Economy and Place to progress if appropriate at a maximum cost of £20,000.

3.0 Main report

3.1 Background

In April 2018, Members agreed that in light of the European Commission's decision on the ineligibility of a UK competition that officers would build on the work undertaken to date and develop alternative options for a 5 year cultural programme of scale. These options will be taken back to Committee for consideration in December 2018. In parallel, negotiations will continue with governments on funding and support including the potential to reconsider the position of Belfast City Council and Derry City and Strabane District Council.

Options Development

- 3.2 The process of developing these options will involve extensive engagement and will adopt a co-design model working closely with citizens and the cultural sector. A panel of international experts will assess the creative projects and signature events included in the programme. The programme plan for the development of these options is included in Appendix 1. Options will also integrate work on:
 - A signature event in partnership with Galway 2020
 - UNESCO City of Music
 - Options for collaboration with other international cities including potential partnerships with the UK cities that had been bidding for 2023 designation
 - Delivery of major events as set out in the Events and Festivals Strategy
 - A year-long cultural programme of scale to be delivered in 2023
 - The opening of the new visitor attraction
- These options will be developed in the context of long-term cultural development and investment and how to best support the priorities set out in the Belfast Agenda. The process of developing options for a 5-year programme will also consider how it should connect with the further development and implementation of the recent Events and Festivals Strategy as well as the future development of a new Cultural Framework and Tourism Strategy. This wider context helps position the five-year programme as the catalyst for sustainable growth and investment in the cultural sector.

Long term cultural development and investment

- 3.4 To support a long-term approach to cultural development the stage one bid had recommended that Belfast considers participation in a suitable global programme such as Culture 21. This programme includes support from international cultural experts, extensive local engagement and critical assessment of the city's current position resulting in clear recommendations for future cultural policy. This work would also address cuts to public sector funding for the arts and inform the most effective long-term response from local government.
- 3.5 The objectives of the programme are as follows:
 - To foster increased local and European understanding of the connection between culture and local sustainable development in the participating cities, on the basis of the issues raised by the Agenda 21 for culture and Culture 21 Actions, as well as other issues relevant to the European and local agendas.
 - To enable the design, implementation and evaluation of innovative pilot measures in areas relevant to culture and sustainable cities, through collaboration between public, private and civil society actors.
 - To facilitate exchanges, evaluation, peer learning and capacity building among European cities concerned with culture and sustainable development, based on the thematic areas identified in Culture 21 Actions.
 - To provide wide visibility to the participating cities and their policies and programmes in the European
- 3.6 Completion of the two year programme includes a four step methodology:
 - 1. Analysis of the local context and first assessment
 - 2. Design of the work programme
 - 3. Implementation of the work programme
 - 3.1 Pilot Measures
 - 3.2 Peer Learning (visit to another city)
 - 3.3 Peer Learning (visit from another city)
 - 3.4 Local civic engagement
 - 3.5 Monitoring
 - 4. Final conference and assessment report

3.7 Recommendations have been received from independent experts and other participating cities. It is proposed that a workshop is held with the organisers of the programme to scope out potential participation by Belfast before making a final decision.

Participation in this programme aligns with the recent Notice of Motion that pledged support to Arts Matter and the need to address ongoing issues of sustainability in the sector.

Financial Strategy

3.8 The development of options for a 5-year programme will involve a financing strategy that will enhance and re-prioritise the level of long-term investment in culture. This will include an effective approach to securing contributions from the private sector. Members will be aware that Belfast recently participated in the Core Cities Cultural Enquiry. The official report and recommendations are due to be published in September 2018 and will be incorporated into the funding strategy. The sessions held in Belfast highlighted the potential for new approaches to cultural investment and the opportunities for public and private finance.

3.9 Recent engagement with the cultural sector has demonstrated support for a major 5 year programme and how it can act as a catalyst for change and present an opportunity to address long term structural and sustainability issues.

Financial & Resource Implications

- 3.10 The Committee agreed that the budget for this development phase would be allocated from resources set aside for the stage 2 bid for European Capital of Culture. **Appendix**1 sets out the programme plan with a total maximum expenditure of £295,000.
- 3.11 Options will then be presented to Committee in December 2018 for consideration in advance of the 2019/20 rate setting.

3.12 Equality or Good Relations Implications

As part of the programme, an engagement plan will be developed and will be equality screened with any gaps addressed. The final programme and associated strategies will also be equality screened.

4.0 Appendices – Documents Attached

Appendix 1 - Programme Plan

APPENDIX 1: Options Development - Programme Plan

Project Name	Project Description	Objectives	Actions	Targets	Timeline	Budget
Strand One: ENG	AGEMENT					
(Y)our Home	6 creative engagement pilot projects delivered as follows: 1. Young people via schools/ after schools programme Remaining projects delivered geographically - 2. North 3. South 4. East 5. West 6. City Centre	Civic Engagement: To continue to develop and build on the momentum of civic engagement started during the Stage 1 bid	Development of 6 pilot engagement projects citywide Monitoring outcomes to feed into long-term legacy plans	500 citizens engaged	November 2018	£120,000 at a cost of £20,000 per pilot
Sector Engagement	In order to develop options for an alternative cultural legacy programme it is important that sector engagement continues to: - Ensure that emerging legacy plans meet the needs of the sector - Identify capacity building and sector	Sector Development and Engagement: To provide an update to the cultural and other relevant sectors on developmental plans and identify a process of on-going co-design	1. Engagement sessions with cultural sector 2. Other relevant sectors to be identified and sessions delivered 3. State of sector survey to be commissioned along	100 Cultural, creative industries, business sectors engaged with	November 2018	£25,000

Strand Two: Cl	development required to deliver legacy programme - Align sector development to long- term cultural development in the city	DMENT	with additional research			
Cultural Programme	To present ambitious options for a cultural legacy programme, further feasibility work is required on a number of potential creative projects. These projects will need to demonstrate how they can contribute to the city's long-term approach to events, festivals and cultural programming. The agreed approach is to test the deliverability of up to 20 projects. Creative projects will be identified in one of three ways:	Cultural Programme development: To test the feasibility of and development options for a cultural programme of scale in 2023 To identify potential areas of growth in the development of signature city events	1. Review of draft project submissions in bid book 2. Invitation to feasibility test small and larger scale projects 3. Review of feasibility findings 4. Presentation of options for a draft 2023 programme	20 projects developed and assessed with potential for further commissioning as part of a year long programme (2023) or as stand alone.	October 2018	£100,000 Each organisation or artist can access up to £10,000 (average £5,000) to further develop and test idea in line with specific criteria and required outputs stipulated by Council. Project proposals assessed by international expert panel.

	 Selection of projects from bid book based on agreed criteria Expressions of interest for further project ideas to meet current gaps from original bid book. Direct commissions for projects identified by the programme team 					
Galway 2020	As part of ECoC stage one bid initial discussions had taken place with Galway 2020 about delivering a largescale partnership project in 2020. Members have agreed that officers carry out further scoping and development work.	Partnerships: To develop options for a largescale partnership project	Scope options Develop project ideas	Project proposal and feasibility study	October 2018	n/a – officer time at this stage with any request for financial investment subject to future approvals

ulture 21	Participation in Agenda 21 –	Strategic approach:	1. Participation in	Engagement with	Commence	£20,000 with
	Pilot Cities for Culture	Alignment of legacy	Agenda 21	local cultural	programme	additional £5,000
	Global Programme.	plans with: The Belfast Agenda;	programme	sector	participation in	for partnership development.
	This programme employs a methodology that will help to: - support the next phase of cultural development in the city - ensure that any plans or strategic frameworks support the priorities of the Belfast Agenda - align options for a new cultural strategy, tourism strategy and recent events/festivals strategy.	Review of the Cultural Framework for Belfast; Events and Festivals Strategy	2. Integrated approach to departmental working to be agreed 3. Clear recommendations for future cultural policy to be made 4. Further development and assessment of the impact of working in local and international partnerships	Engagement with departments across Council Access to international experts Series of key policy recommendations	September 2018 (up to 2 years)	
	The programme provides					
	mentoring and support and outputs will include key					
	recommendations on					
	longer term cultural					
	development in the city.					

Pag	
ge	
23	

Strand Four: BUSINESS CASE DEVELOPMENT							
Business Case	Any cultural legacy programme will require public and private investment. The development of the business case will test the return on investment as well as begin to consider a fundraising strategy.	Investment: Test the return on investment for ECoC legacy programme	Options appraisal Development of business case Develop a fundraising strategy to support legacy plans	Recommended option	January 2019	£25,000	

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 6a



CITY GROWTH & REGENERATION COMMITTEE

Subject:	Belfast Cycling Strategy							
Date:	13 th June 2018							
Reporting Officer:	John Greer, Director of Economic Developme	John Greer, Director of Economic Development						
Contact Officer:	Anne Doherty, Planning & Transport Officer	Anne Doherty, Planning & Transport Officer						
Restricted Reports								
Is this report restricte	1?	Yes		No	Х			
If Yes, when will	If Yes, when will the report become unrestricted?							
After Committee Decision								
After Cour	cil Decision							
Some time	in the future							
Never								
Call-in								
Is the decision eligible fo	Call-in?	Yes	Х	No				
1.0 Purpose of F	Purpose of Report or Summary of Main Issues							
European Cy	European Cycle-Friendly Employer Accreditation Scheme							
1.1 To provide in	To provide information on the Sustrans and Cycle NI proposals for a workforce cyclin							
accreditation scheme.								

	Advocacy and Influence							
1.2	To consider proposals for Council engagement with the Department for Infrastructure on							
	the implementation of the Belfast Bicycle Network Plan.							
2.0	Recommendations							
2.1	The Committee is asked to:							
	Note emerging detail of the Cycle-Friendly accreditation scheme.							
	Agree to invite Dfl to a future meeting to discuss plans for the implementation of the							
	Bicycle Network Plan and agree Council priorities; and							
	Note the ongoing partnership work of the Active Belfast initiative and the work of the							
	'Task And Finish' subgroup.							
3.0	Main report							
	European Cycle-Friendly Employer Accreditation Scheme							
3.1	A new cycle-friendly accreditation scheme for employers, which is delivered by Cycling							
	UK, was launched in Belfast on the 19 April 2018. The scheme is aimed at encouraging							
	staff to commute to work by bike and was developed to provide a European standard for							
	cycle-friendly companies. It is run by the European Cyclists' Federation							
	(ECF) across Europe. It will be delivered in the UK by Cycling UK and supported							
	by Sustrans. Sustrans is promoting the scheme as part of the €4.4m CHIPS project (Cycle							
	Highways Innovation for Smarter People Transport and Spatial Planning) which involves							
	Belfast working with European partner countries to tackle high levels of air pollution by							
	encouraging cycling.							
3.2	The scheme recognises that ancouraging staff to evals to work and for hydrogo journeys							
3.2	The scheme recognises that encouraging staff to cycle to work and for business journeys							
	helps improve staff health and can boost productivity. Research shows that on average,							
	employees who cycle-commute take at least one day per annum less off sick than							
	colleagues who do not cycle to work. The benefits can also be found for people's mental							
	wellbeing, as studies have shown car commuters are at least 13% more likely to feel							
	constantly under strain or unable to concentrate than those who cycle/walk to work.							
3.3	To gain certification, organisations will have to meet some basic measures like cycle							
	parking and providing information to employees, plus some additional measures which							
	, J , J , J , J , J , J , J , J , J , J							

they can choose. Employers are then graded Gold, Silver or Bronze depending on their commitment to making their workplace more cycle-friendly. For example:

- Bronze A staff member is responsible for improving cycling to work, and parking a bike is as easy as parking a car.
- Silver- There are some facilities like lockers and regular events but they could improve. On-site assessment and advice is provided.
- Gold- cycling to work is stress-free and seamless for staff and visitors. There are showers, bike mileage reimbursements, and incentives to get more staff cycling.
- The outline detail of the scheme would indicate a contribution to delivering a number of the outcomes of the Belfast Agenda in particular "Belfast is a vibrant, attractive, connected and environmentally sustainable city". An indicator of this outcome is to increase "the percentage of all journeys which are made by walking, cycling or public transport".
- Officers from across Council departments are currently engaging with Sustrans and Cycling UK, regarding further detail of the Cycle-Friendly Accreditation Scheme and a follow up report will be brought back to committee at a later date.

Advocacy and influence

Belfast Bicycle Network Plan

- The Council responded to the public consultation on the Draft Belfast Bicycle Network Plan in January 2017, highlighting the following issues:
 - the timeframe for the delivery of the network will be dependent on the resources available and it is critical that adequate resources are allocated to the implementation of the plan; and
 - the omission of a number of the main arterial routes which service high density residential areas from the primary network was viewed as a major oversight, in particular the Lisburn and Ormeau Roads.
- In relation to strengthening the Council's advocacy role with Dfl, it is suggested that the Council invite Dfl to a future meeting of the CG&R Committee to discuss their plans for the implementation of the Belfast Bicycle Network Plan and that the Council highlights potential areas for consideration as priorities to deliver the bicycle network plan for Belfast.

- 3.8 It is suggested the following priorities are raised with Dfl for consideration:
 - Potential to introduce new cycling infrastructure along key arterial routes linking to the city centre such as:
 - the Ormeau Road linking to the proposed Gasworks Bridge and Towpath;
 - the north of the city linking the National Cycle path along the River Lagan; and
 - the west of the city connecting the Royal Hospital and the new transport hub.
 - The Sydenham Greenway the potential to link the existing Comber Greenway and Connswater Community Greenway with the North Down Coastal Path at Holywood.
 This has the potential to provide a link to the George Best Belfast City Airport, the Harbour Estate and the proposed park and ride facility at Tillysburn.
 - Through the Green and Blue infrastructure plan (as part of the ongoing Local Development Plan work) consider routes and links along green corridors and rivers which can be used to promote cycling and walking.
- 3.9 Although Dfl have made progress on developing the cycling network in the city centre, there is a lack of progress on developing a coherent bicycle network city-wide. The Middlepath Street scheme, once completed will link the city centre to the east of the city and the Connswater Greenway, however there is a need for convenient and safe cycling infrastructure linking the city centre to the north, west and south of the city. There is also a need to maximise opportunities around the development of greenways such as the Comber and Connswater Greenway and develop new greenways.

3.10 Active Belfast

It should be noted that the Council is already committed to working at a strategic level on promoting physical activity including cycling through the work of the Belfast Strategic Partnership (BSP) and the Active Belfast initiative. On behalf of BSP, the Active Belfast Partnership has developed and agreed a new overarching strategy for physical activity within Belfast. 'Get Active Belfast' provides a platform to strengthen the partnership approach to addressing inequalities by creating a more active city. It is not a replacement for strategies which are currently being taken forward by individual organisations, but is intended to create additional value through working together at a strategic level. In this, it is acknowledged that 'increasing participation in physical activity cannot be achieved through any single solution', but requires a collaborative approach which embraces the themes of education, transport, planning, public health, community development and sport.

3.11 Get Active Belfast also sets out seven pledges in pursuit of the five strategic priorities and associated outcomes. These are as follows: Support schools to offer physical activity throughout the day 2. Create an integrated Active Travel network 3. Create more active places through local spatial planning 4. Strengthen connections to and within the health sector 5. Develop and implement a comprehensive marketing campaign on the benefits of being active 6. Deliver wide ranging and inclusive community based activity programmes 7. Support local sports clubs to deliver inclusive and adapted sports for all 3.12 Each pledge will have an associated action plan, with the first of these being around the pledge to 'create an integrated active travel network'. A 'Task and finish' subgroup has recently been established for this pledge and key stakeholders have been asked to commit to three meetings, with a view to producing a collective action plan to be rolled out from mid-2018. Financial and Resource Implications 3.13 There may be resource implications associated with the implementation of the bicycle network proposals in association with Dfl and council involvement in the Cycle-Friendly Accreditation Scheme. A follow up report will be brought back to committee at a later date outlining potential resource implications. **Equality or Good Relations Implications** 3.14 No specific equality or good relations implications. 4.0 Appendices – Documents Attached None.



Agenda Item 6b



CITY GROWTH AND REGENERATION COMMITTEE

Subjec	et:	Committee Plan 2017-18 Year End Report					
Date:		13 June 2018					
Report	ting Officer:	Suzanne Wylie, Chief Executive					
		John Greer, Director of Economic Developme	ent				
Contac	ct Officer:	Nuala Gallagher, Director of City Centre Deve	elopme	nt			
Restric	ted Reports						
Is this	report restricted?		Yes		No	X	
11	Yes, when will the	report become unrestricted?					
	·	•					
	After Committee						
	After Council E Some time in the						
	Never	ie iuture					
	NOVOI						
Call-in							
Is the c	decision eligible for	Call-in?	Yes	X	No		
1.0	Purpose of Repor	t or Summary of main Issues					
1.1	The purpose of this	report is to close-off the 2017-18 City Growth	& Rege	enerati	on		
	Committee Plan. This provides an update on progress with the key actions, in particular						
	highlighting the work undertaken in terms of jobs growth, skills development, cultural						
	investment and physical regeneration. The headline figure is that, during 2017-18, over						
	1,700 residents have entered employment/self-employment as a direct result of the						
	Council's investment.						
		•••					

- The Plan drew together several annual delivery plans; such as city centre development, support for businesses, Employability & Skills, tourism and the cultural framework. It set out the main priorities and programmes of work that the Committee oversaw during 2017-18 to maximise the Council's contribution to delivering the Belfast Agenda that, at its core, has a commitment to inclusive growth.
- 1.3 The Belfast Agenda sets out an ambition for growth and opportunity that includes four headline goals to focus on the economic and social growth of Belfast so that by 2035:
 - Our city is home to an additional 66,000 new residents
 - Our urban economy supports 46,000 more jobs
 - There will be a 33% reduction in the life expectancy gap between the most and least deprived neighbourhoods
 - Every young person leaving school has a destination that fulfils their potential.

2.0 Recommendations

- 2.1 The Committee is asked to:
 - Note the content of the report and that officers are continuing to progress the
 actions within the City Growth and Regeneration Committee Plan 2018-19 as
 agreed by the Committee in April 2018.

3.0 Main report

3.1 Key Issues

The 2017-18 Committee Plan was developed in line with the Council's Corporate Plan and the Belfast Agenda. The Belfast Agenda has at its core a commitment to inclusive growth and the importance of growing the local economy to improve the quality of life. While the Committee contributes to the delivery of all 4 work-streams, Growing the Economy, City Development and Working & Learning are the focus of this Committee, therefore the Committee continues to take the lead in ensuring that there is connectivity between the need for economic growth and the purpose of this growth – to connect people to opportunity and reduce inequality.

The Committee has received regular reports throughout the year outlining the progress with the key programmes of work. Building on this work, the Committee approved the 2018-19 Committee Plan in April 2018 in order to continue the Council's investment and commitment to delivering on the Belfast Agenda ambitions.

Appendix 1 provides an update against each of the main action areas in the Committee plan. Members are also aware that a number of detailed reports on key programmes of work have recently been considered and these will continue to feature regularly on the Committee agenda.

Overview of Progress:

- 3.4 Particular highlights for the 2017-2018 Committee Plan include: Growing the Economy
 - Through our enterprise outreach activities, we have engaged with 361 individuals
 across the city, plus 30 student entrepreneurs, 33 social enterprises and co-operatives
 (via the 'Go-Social' programme), and 24 high growth start-ups to help them start a
 business.
 - 249 jobs were created through out "Go For It" programme in 2017/18 which helped individuals to develop new business plans.
 - Launched the new 'Think Do Be' business growth programme in September 2017 130
 companies have accessed support to date with each company having the potential to
 create at least one new job.
 - Business and Conference tourism this year delivered 79,300 bed nights, which contributed over £45million to the City's economy
 - Working with the Smart Cities team, three collaborative networks have been appointed to take forward the Tourism Challenge focusing on building a more accurate understanding of visitor behaviour and gather real time data.
 - The City Events annual event programme attracted an audience of almost 318,000 people into the city. This helped to create an economic benefit of £16.8 million.
 - Successfully supported the third annual Friendship Four Ice Hockey Tournament in partnership with the SSE Arena that reached a worldwide TV audience of 20M households and over 100M viewers.
 - Secured the Council's invitation to the Shenyang Winter Cities Summit for 2018 as a result of the visit from our Sister City Shenyang and successfully programmed the 'Nashville in Belfast' week which took place in April 2018
 - Secured approval to launch the pilot phase of the Belfast City for Investment; Soft Landing Service. (Since launching in April 2018, 13 enquires have been dealt with).

City Development

• Launch of the new Belfast Brand, which has integrated the new Belfast Brand into BCC corporate communications and advertising campaigns.

3.5

- Launched the new website to promote Belfast to the investment and development communities, both domestically and internationally in March 2018 (www.investinbelfast.com).
- A delegation of over 80 people attended MIPIM as part of the Belfast delegation (35 supporting private and public sector organisations). In total, £269,825 private sector sponsorship was raised for Belfast at MIPIM 2018.
- Expanded the VUCITY model to cover 52km² of Belfast and incorporated into the Belfast at MIPIM 2018 stand to showcase development and investment opportunities in the city.
- Launch of the City Centre Investment Fund seeking applications for commercial development.
- East Bank and Inner North West draft Masterplans produced for consultation, and extensive engagement undertaken
- Commissioned Belfast Region Infrastructure Investment Plan to support City Region Deal application.
- Business case for second major visitor attraction (Destination Hub/Belfast Story) underway.
- Secured approval to allocate £240k per annum for two years to provide animation in Castle Street & North Street, with roll-out planned for summer 2018.

3.6 Working & Learning

- Across the various Employability & Skills programmes offered by the Council, over 4,300 residents have accessed employability interventions. Of these, over 1,300 have entered employment/self-employment.
- Launched and delivered the new Employment Academy sectoral model. Employment Academies in 2017-18 focused on the hospitality, construction, healthcare, retail and public transportation sectors.
- In total, 5,328 young people have participated in employability and skills development activities in schools across the City.
- Additionally, over 3,100 training accreditations have been supported, with 490 progressing onto further education or training.

3.7 Living Here

 The work on the European Capital of Culture bid engaged over 15,000 citizens as well as 300 artists and practitioners with 125 project proposals received. Since the announcement that Belfast was no longer eligible associated work programmes have

	Appendix 1 - CGR Committee Plan 2017-18 – Year End Update
4.0	Appendices – Documents Attached
3.9	Equality or Good Relations Implications Programmes and actions within the Committee Plan are developed and delivered in consultation with the Council's Equality & Diversity Officers.
3.8	Financial & Resource Implications Progress is in line with the previous agreed Departmental budgets.
	 continued. This includes securing Committee approval in March 2018 to progress plans to apply for UNESCO City of Music. Ten organisations benefitted from one-to-one mentoring through our capacity building support to strengthen the cultural sector. The first 'BelFeast Food & Drink' festival showcased our local food and drinks industry in the city centre, attracting approximately 11,000 visitors at the market and various events. Visitor surveys generated 100% positive response to the question of BelFeast becoming an annual/ regular event.





City Growth and Regeneration Committee Plan – 2017-18

Year End Update





City Growth and Regeneration Committee Key Actions 2017-18

Ref	Belfast Agenda Workstream and Milestones	Lead Director	Update (October to March)
	Growing the economy		
1.1	Create employment and opportunity		
1.1.1	Develop and deliver an integrated, sustainable approach to inclusive economic growth and investment		
.1	Establish a Belfast Economic Growth Forum to create an effective economic strategy for Belfast and the city region		The Economic Growth Forum core partners meet quarterly and have a programme of work in place to inform the delivery of
.a	Lead quarterly meetings of the core partners to form a Belfast Economic Growth Forum, aligned to the Belfast agenda governance arrangements		the Growing the Economy priority within the Belfast Agenda. Advice and expertise is provided on key programmes of work such as city investment support, MIPIM, information sharing on key strategic growth sectors for the city, for example, the Screen industry. The Forum also regularly exchanges views and information on economic developments such as Brexit and global connections. The development of the Belfast Region City Deal has been a core agenda item to advise and provide expertise on the priorities - employability & skills, infrastructure, innovation and tourism product. The Forum has advised on the development of the Industrial Strategic Framework for the Belfast City Region, to provide context and coherence for the City Deal proposals.
.b	Develop a programme of work with the Forum including the development of an Economic Strategy for the city region	Chief Executive / Development	
.2	An economic and social policy approach to drive inclusive growth		
.a	Research to consider alternative economic models to enhance inclusive growth	Chief Executive / Development	The Belfast Agenda, launched in November 2017, includes a clear commitment to 'leaving no one behind'.
.b	Engage and inform the next stage of feasibility work on the city growth deal proposition including the specific deliverables (asks) and funding model.		The CGR Committee meeting held a special meeting in November 2017 to consider the opportunities and implications resulting from Brexit with input from a range of independent

Ref	Belfast Agenda Workstream and Milestones	Lead Director	Update (October to March)
.C	Develop and implement a political lobbying strategy to inform the negotiations and forward planning around Brexit.		experts. This included the importance of growing and diversifying the local economy and integrating skills and
.d	Engage with core cities (e.g. the City of London and Dublin) to identify opportunities of mutual benefit e.g. joint marketing, trade and investment.		employability/social innovation at a local level is a core aspect of the Committee's remit. There is ongoing engagement with City of London and Dublin
.e	Undertake analysis on the likely impact of Brexit on Belfast to inform future interventions and support sustainable growth		focusing on key areas of mutual strength, such as Financial Services, Cyber Security etc. as well as building on Belfast's unique position in the context of Brexit.
.f	Ongoing focus on an inclusive growth strategy to enable all Belfast residents to benefit from the developments in the city.		While the concept of inclusive growth has been factored in to the Committee's workplan; particularly in developing employability and skills and identifying opportunities to maximise the benefits from developments in the city, the Committee emphasised the importance of creating a coherent programme of work to drive inclusive growth. The approach to developing a Council wide framework for inclusive growth will form a key area of work in 2018/19 to fully deliver on the Belfast Agenda.
1.2	Attract investment into Belfast		
1.2.1	Maximise the city's connections to drive growth		
.1	Deliver the International Relations Framework		London and Dublin
.a	Strengthen relationships locally and internationally focusing on our Sister Cities and strategic city relationships with London and Dublin		Following the Special CGR Committee to consider Brexit, Officers are exploring a Belfast – Dublin economic conference for autumn 2018.
.b	Work with key partners to promote Belfast as a place to trade, invest, study and visit	Development	The lead prospecting agency has been profiling Belfast in the heart of London, promoting the City as 'open for business'. The 2018/19 activities will include up to two Belfast based events
.c	Deliver the Nashville Mission and host inward investors missions	Development	and specialist trade programmes in London. Nashville
.d	Deliver Belfast in China Week and host inward investors missions		Council hosted a multi-sectoral annual inward mission from Nashville in October. This led to plans for: 'Nashville in Belfast'
.e	Deliver Belfast in Boston Week and host inward investors missions		week, and a US State Department business mission in Belfast

Ref	Belfast Agenda Workstream and Milestones	Lead Director	Update (October to March)	
			in 2018. Other support secured includes: Nashv Michael King undertaking to co-finance a series Nashville in Belfast'; a Belfast law firm pursuing the Belfast Law Society and the Nashville Bar As	of events for ' links between
			China/Shenyang	
			Supported the Chinese Consulate to establish a Consulate. Council hosted its Sister City Shenya December, during the UK China Leaders' Region in NI for the first time. This led to Belfast / Sher Cities cooperation, and an invite for Council to a Shenyang Winter Cities Summit in Shenyang (See	ng in nal Summit held nyang Smart attend the
.f	Support the successful delivery of the Friendship Four Ice Hockey Festival 2017 and the Basketball Hall of Fame		Other activities included: The Belfast Marketplace attracted four new members to the China Stake the Chinese New Year Programme including a L mark the EU China Year of Tourism; Visit Belfast training through the UK China Ready language a programme (this will be rolled out with support NI); an Ulster University-led Sports delegation to October; a promotional video in Mandarin promopportunities; hosting the first of a three-year reconference; an inward visit in December by a company from the city of Chengdu (representing store); and providing marketing material for Invulster University to promote Belfast in Hong Kor	holders group; ight Bridge to t accredited and cultural from Tourism o China in oting education obotics ommunications g 100 retail vest NI and
			Upcoming opportunities include: an export/impolater in 2018 in Beijing; working with InvestNI a lead a FinTech mission to Shenyang next year; a showcase in Shenyang in Sept.	ort trade show and others to
			Boston Activities	
			Council hosted a Boston multi sectoral mission in Efforts focused on the areas of judiciary, educated and regeneration, and provided an opportunity dialogue with Mayor Walsh's Head of Internation	tion, business to enter into
			Council supported the third annual Friendship Fo	our Ice Hockey

Ref	Belfast Agenda Workstream and Milestones	Lead Director	Update (October to March)
			Tournament in partnership with the SSE Arena, with the following outputs: 21,727 in attendance (278 schools and youth groups provided with 13,200 complimentary tickets). Live broadcast reached a worldwide TV audience of 20M households and over 100M viewers.
			The inaugural Basketball Hall of Fame Belfast Classic Tournament in December 2017, led to 9,837 attending (3,731 tickets went to schools and community organisations). International broadcast reached 60M households in the USA and NI Belfast exposure on Aer Lingus website for a 6-week period valued at £1.2M.
			Other outcomes include: a Mass Challenge pilot; help for a social enterprise to establish a philanthropic fund; connecting with the Boston Resilience Commissioner for staff exchanges and a joint pilot project; connecting four companies to Boston opportunities (a food and drinks company, a sports equipment company, a skills development company, and a management training company); promoting the Norwegian flight connection and new hotel & tourism products to tour operators; and the inaugural trip of the Boston Youth Empowerment Programme for disadvantaged communities.
1.2.2	Build the city's position as a magnet for Foreign Direct Investment (FDI)		
.1	Establish a City Investment Support scheme and Advice Service (concierge)		Belfast continues to be an attractive investment location for its size. According to INI figures, last year there was over £150m of business investment into the city by local and international
.a	Design options for City Investment Support scheme and Advice Service	Development	businesses.
.b	Develop and deliver implementation plan (Subject to Committee approval of preferred option)		Belfast City for Investment; Soft Landing Service has progressed from the research and development phase between April 17-March 18 for implementation in April 2018 as a pilot. Following consultation at Committee and subsequent Party Group Briefings, a pilot phase was agreed in March 2018. Milestones achieved to date include:

Ref	Belfast Agenda Workstream and Milestones	Lead Director	Update (October to March)
			 Preparation of a protocol for engagement with InvestNI's International Investment Director on pre-investment enquiries. Finalising the scope of services that Council offer, for example, in relation to Property Availability Data for prospective investors in collaboration with Property and Estates Department. Since the initiation of the Pilot Phase (April 2018) 13 enquires have been received. This will provide an evidence base for a developing the service and investment proposition. Promotion of the availability of the service throughout 18/19 and proactively work with investors providing the professional and personal connections to help businesses be successful in Belfast. Monitoring and reviewing enquiries.
1.3	Foster business growth in Belfast		
1.3.1	Accelerate sector specific support (see also 3.1.2 Small Business Support Plan initiatives).		
.1	Explore options to promote and incentivise office and hotel developments in the city	City Centre	The CCIF is now in place with work already on the way to encourage investment in Grade A office accommodation. Applications have been shortlisted for the final stage of Due
.a	Incentivise the development of Grade A office development through the new City Centre Investment Fund	Development	Diligence. (see also 3.4.1 below)
.2	Develop a city strategy for the Digital and Financial tech sector	Development	Research and engagement with key industry groups is continuing to further develop our work in these sectors.
.a	Support the Centre for Secure Information Technology (CSIT) to develop a Cyber Security strategy for Northern Ireland		Five emerging artists from Belfast performed at the "2017 Great Escape Festival" in Brighton in an "Output Belfast" branded venue in front of an audience comprising over 200
.b	Work with Invest NI and other partners on action plans for other growth sectors including Financial Technology (Fin		influential industry and media guests.

City Growth and Regeneration Committee				2017/18
Ref	Belfast Agenda Workstream and Milestones	Lead Director	Update (October to March)	
	Tech), Legal Services, Life & Health Sciences and Creative Industries		The second Belfast 'Cartoon Business' event v 11 May.	vas held from 9 –
.3	Creative & digital industries		Two local businesses were supported by the	
.a	Work in partnership with InvestNI and stakeholders to position Belfast and its businesses at key events including the Great Escape Festival in Brighton, MIDEM, the International Music Conference in Cannes, and SxSW in Austin. The programme will include Council business bursaries to support businesses participation at events and programmes		part in South by Southwest in March 2018. An exterr evaluation will be conducted to establish the outcom and reported to committee in August 2018.	
.b	Host the Cartoon Business Conference event	Day salamma amb		
.c	Develop a learning pilot for delivery of co-working space for Creative and Digital Sector Businesses and further explore the role for Council intervention in co-working space with commercial partners	Development		
.d	Collaborate with public sector sponsors such as Invest NI, Tourism Ireland, TourismNI and Generator NI and private promoters such as Digital DNA, BelTech, TechXplore and Audio Visual Arts Conference to collectively deliver a programme of activity throughout 2017/18			
.4	Export for Growth Strategy			
.a	Collaborate with NI Chamber of Commerce to positively engage with the private sector. This will link to the International Chamber of Commerce Network to support Export Activity and engagement in NI Chamber events and missions	Development	Our International Trade and Export programm January 2018. To date 18 businesses are accand, so far, two companies have received supnew market development opportunities.	cessing support oport to attend
.b	Engage with Invest NI to ensure that companies access their suite of programmes to develop export potential		Committee agreed in April to sponsor the Lon business network Belfast Partners. This netwo business development connections between t	ork supports
.c	Consider how this tri-partite arrangement can use the World Trade Centre licence and link to more than 300 similar centres all across the world		A civic reception and dinner for the Lord Mayon hosted in October in the Titanic Hotel Belfast. included a Business roundtable in the Citi Hea	The visit

Ref	Belfast Agenda Workstream and Milestones	Lead Director	Update (October to March)		
.d	Put in place export mentor support to enable businesses to access business opportunities created through linkages with Belfast's Sister Cities		building in Titanic Quarter to position Belfast a location for financial and professional services a visit to Centre for Secure Information Techn	. It also included lology (CSIT) to	
.e	Work with London and Dublin partners to establish these linkages to promote B2B first time export opportunities		showcase their research and technology excel In March 2018 Belfast Partners, in collaboration City Council and British Business Bank, hosted capitalists from London on an inward investment Belfast that included visits to KPMG, Novosco, and introductions to companies seeking funding	on with Belfast I eight venture ent visit to Ormeau Baths	
1.4	Strengthen business relationships and make it easy to do business				
1.4.1	Make Belfast a great place to do business, supporting entrepreneurs and business starts				
.1	Develop an Enterprise Framework for Belfast and implementation plan		Ulster University's Economic Policy Centre was co to investigate barriers to underrepresented group complete and has been used as a basis to develo	oups. This is now	
.a	Commission research to identify under-represented groups in enterprise and business start-up across Belfast and target marketing, programmes and sponsorship towards supporting them	be Cit Bu	better target underrepresented groups Citywide partners have been engaged Business Growth working group and ha	better target underrepresented groups. Citywide partners have been engaged through Business Growth working group and have agre	ough the Enterprise & agreed to support
.b	Create an Enterprise Framework for the city in partnership with local economic development stakeholders	Development	the development of an enterprise framework for Economic development have been commissioned this which will complete in July 2018.		
.c	Scope the potential for new collaborative opportunities, partnerships and investment, building on relationships with strategic partners such as Belfast Chamber of Commerce and InvestNI		, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,		
.2	Develop & deliver a comprehensive suite of programmes to support businesses to start				
.a	Deliver an enhanced enterprise outreach and engagement programme, targeting under-represented groups	Development	We put in place a range of enterprise outreach encourage business start. Through this activity 361 individuals across the city.	y we engaged	
			Through the Go For It programme in 2017/18	we have	

Ref	Belfast Agenda Workstream and Milestones	Lead Director	Update (October to March)	
.b	Research an appropriate Incentivisation Scheme to support small business start-up as part of the Enterprise Framework (2.1.1)		engaged 362 individuals who have developed business plans resulting in the creation of 249 jobs. We have also provided support to 30 student entrepreneurs	
.c	Deliver targeted support programme for high potential start- ups focusing on Creative & Digital industries, Financial & professional services, Advanced Engineering, Clean technology, ICT & Electronics and Life & health Sciences		through Belfast Enterprise Academy, 33 social enterprises and cooperatives through Go Social and 24 high growth start-ups through Venture for Success. Our City Start Up programme is now in place to support	
.d	Deliver the regional start-up programme (Go for It)		businesses in the fashion, food, retail and tourism sectors and	
.e	Pilot a City Business Start-up in addition to Go for It, focusing on key city centre based business start-ups e.g. retail, tourism, markets, and food to inform future ERDF applications		is being used to pilot small business incentives, to date 13 Belfast based businesses have accessed support. Council has allocated over £600k for this work and leveraged a	
.f	Deliver specific programmes aimed at supporting start-up business by graduates and the social enterprises and cooperatives		further £400k.	
.g	Continue to work with and enhance the operating model for the Innovation Factory, exploring opportunities to replicate the model across other parts of the city (city centre accelerators)			
.3	Deliver a suite of programmes to support existing businesses to grow			
.a	Deliver programmes to increase access to public procurement opportunities, including 'Meet the Buyer events' in partnership with Inter-Trade Ireland		The new ERDF funded business growth programme 'Think Do Be' launched in September 2017. Since commencement, 130 companies have accessed support. Each participant on the	
.b	Identify collaborative opportunities to deliver key actions in specific growth sectors e.g. Cyber Security, tech, creative and digital, finance, legal, etc.	Development	programme has the potential to create at least 1 new job. The procurement support programme commenced in October 2017. Delivered in partnership with InterTradeIreland it has	
.c	Supporting exports and international trade activity in collaboration with NI Chamber of Commerce and engagement with invest NI		"Introduction to Tendering" s the "Go 2 Tender" sessions. to enable us to report on the businesses who have accesse	engaged 115 businesses in total; 70 participants on the "Introduction to Tendering" sessions and 45 participants on the "Go 2 Tender" sessions. An evaluation will be undertaken
.d	Explore and develop new business 'accelerator models' in partnership with economic stakeholders (aligned to 2.1.2g)			to enable us to report on the jobs and sales increase for the businesses who have accessed support.
.e	Provide generic business growth and mentoring support to meet the needs of existing Belfast Businesses		Current programmes target creative & digital, retail and tourism. We are also supporting the Innovation Factory and	

City C	ity Growth and Regeneration Committee				
Ref	Belfast Agenda Workstream and Milestones	Lead Director Update (October to March)			
.f	Review the Belfast City Centre Management services and future functions for consideration by Committee, and deliver dedicated retail support channelled via trade associations.		city conferences. We are engaging with the sadditional support for exporting, high-growth cyber security, and a business accelerator moved working with MassChallenge Boston along with Catalyst Inc we launched "Bridge to MassChallenge to MassChallenge and an outward mission to Boston to put Mass Challenge boot camp in May 2018. Significant recruitment activity has been complace the resources required to deliver the complace of the support of the suppor	sectors such as odel. th Invest NI and llenge Belfast" in tial start-ups from articipate on the oleted to put in	
1.5	Maximise the impact of the region				
1.5.1	Drive city region sustainable growth				
.1	Shape the development of the Growth Deal for the City- Region		The agreed objective for the Belfast Region City Deal is 'more and better jobs; inclusive growth; improved skills and growth		
.a	Ongoing representation of economic information, programmes and progress at regional, city and council planning events to understand the city economy	Chief	of domestic business and FDI'. Development of the programme based on the agreed pillars of infrastructure, innovation and skills. Economic briefings and regular strategies sessions have been held with the Committee, such as	rastructure, regular strategic	
.b	Ongoing strategic sessions with key partners on major city issues such as infrastructure, transport, housing, skills, education etc.	Executive	transport, housing, investment, skills and Bre information has informed the work on the Cit the positive engagement through specific work Committee and Members on issues such as house the living this approach will be used during consider key strategic issues.	xit. This y Deal. Based on kshops with ousing and city	
.2	Seek devolution of comprehensive development powers				
.a	Develop a joint programme of prioritised regeneration schemes with DfC and the City Development Forum	Chief Executive /	Joint Regeneration Group established with BC Chair. Members include DfC, DfI, SIB & BCC		
.b	Establish new joint governance and delivery arrangements with DfC and other partners building on the MOU	City Centre Development	City Centre Development Prioritisation of regeneration schemes ongoing t continual engagement including; Streets Ahead	ad 3 & 5;	
.C	Feed 'development' issues into the emerging City Growth Deal proposition		Blackstaff Sq; Greater Clarendon & Sailortown; Queens DfC land acquisitions;		

Ref	Belfast Agenda Workstream and Milestones	Lead Director	Update (October to March)	
			Initial discussions with DfC and others over production of Strategic Site Assessment and a 'One Public Estate' approach to development of sites.	
			Continual input into emerging Belfast Region City Deal application through membership of the Internal Officers City Deal Group; promotion of projects and the ongoing Belfast Region Infrastructure Investment Plan.	
			Commissioning of Belfast Region Infrastructure Investment Plan.	
	Living here			
2.2	Improve the city living experience			
2.2.1	Deliver an integrated cultural and arts strategy/framework			
.1	Deliver the 2017-18 actions in the Cultural Framework		Seven expressions of interest from local arts organisations were selected as part of the cultural animation programme. All	
.a	Deliver the 'Distinctly Belfast' programme theme including cultural animation, "Bringing Heritage to Life", heritage skills development, and a Public Art policy		of the projects were collaborative initiatives and the organisations worked together with Council to link and enhance the projects. The programme was entitled Belfast Arts	
.b	Deliver the 'Attracting Audiences' programme theme including research undertaken by Audiences NI		Weekender. It ran over two weekends in March & offered a variety of free arts events. The Weekender proved successful.	
.c	Deliver the 'Inspiring Communities' programme theme including 'Artist in Residence' (PEACE IV) and supporting participation in voluntary and amateur arts activities	Development	However, it was affected by adverse weather including snow. As a result two of the events had to be rescheduled for May 2018.	
.d	Deliver the 'Strengthening the Sector' programme theme including an MOU with key strategic partners, explore opportunities for joint initiatives with the Arts Council, and tailored skills and career development	F F F r ii	Audiences NI) and a report has been product for presentation to Head of Service, Manage Further analysis of the findings will be under	Primary research was undertaken by Thrive (previously Audiences NI) and a report has been produced which is due for presentation to Head of Service, Manager and TCHA Team. Further analysis of the findings will be undertaken which will
.e	Ongoing delivery of grants programmes and support for the Culture, Festivals and Visual Arts Forums		result in understanding the baseline figures. This will assist in informing work plans and the work of the revised Cultural Strategy. A capacity building programme was delivered to ten	

Ref	Belfast Agenda Workstream and Milestones	Lead Director	Update (October to March)
			organisations through the one-to-one mentoring programme. The programme completed at the end of March 2018.
			The tender for the Resilience Building Programme was issued in December 17. A consultant has been appointed and the programme design & recruitment is underway. Some delays were experienced due to ACNI considering the involvement of Derry City & Strabane Council as a project partner.
2.2.2	Submit a joint bid with Derry & Strabane Council for the EU Capital of Culture 2023		
.a	Members workshop to inform the development of a bid		The stage one bid was submitted on 27 October. Over 15,000
.b	Develop partnership and governance arrangements with Derry City and Strabane Council		citizens were engaged with as part of the bid process as well as 300 artists and practitioners with 125 project proposals received. In November 2017, the European Commission announced that UK would not be eligible to host the designation in 2023. Members and officers have been engaging with DCMS, the EC and other participating cities to agree a way forward. Negotiations are ongoing and officers
.c	Phase 1 Submission of bid to DCMS	Chief	
.d	EU Panel announce shortlisted cities	Executive	
.e	Formal Creation of SPV Fixed Life Company		
.f	Development of Phase 1 Bid Book into a detailed Phase 2 Book		are working on a number of options for consideration by Committee to be completed early 2019. Associated work programmes include approval by Committee in March 2018 to progress plans to apply for UNESCO City of Music.
	City development		
3.1	Promote and position the city to compete		
3.1.1	Build citywide commitment to Belfast place positioning		
.1	Implement the Belfast place positioning approach	Chief	The new Belfast Brand has been launched integrated into BCC corporate communications and advertising campaigns. It is
.a	Finalise and agree the Belfast narrative	Executive / City Centre Development	also being used by city partners and Belfast at MIPIM 2018
.b	Develop an Implementation plan		carried the new city branding.
.C	Establish a City Ambassador programme		

Ref	Belfast Agenda Workstream and Milestones	Lead Director	Update (October to March)
.d	Strategic marketing piece to position Belfast in a post Brexit context as a place to live, visit and invest		
.2	Deliver marketing programme to promote Belfast to Investment and FDI communities		
.a	Develop marketing pack that promotes Belfast to the Investment and FDI communities, both domestically and internationally	City Centre Development	A new website that promotes Belfast to the investment and development communities, both domestically and internationally, was launched in March 2018.
.b	Deliver events programme to promote Belfast Investment opportunities		
.c	Develop targeted advertising and PR campaign to promote Belfast investment opportunities		
.3	Deliver Belfast at MIPIM 2018		
.a	Work with city partners to develop a MIPIM programme and marketing		A delegation of over 80 people attended MIPIM as part of the Belfast delegation. This was made up of 35 supporting private
.b	Secure sponsorship and supporting collateral for MIPIM		and public sector organisations. In total, £269,825 private sector sponsorship was raised for Belfast at MIPIM 2018.
.c	Attend MIPIM 2018	City Centre Development	The 4-day event conference involved a concentrated programme of events, meetings and engagements which allowed us to showcase Belfast as an exciting location for investment. The Belfast at MIPIM 2018 Programme included 15 unique events organised by Belfast at MIPIM and Presenting at events
			organised by other cities or partner organisations.
3.2	Develop the city's infrastructure and improve connectivity locally		
3.2.1	Create a partnership and plan for sustainable urban infrastructure		
.1	Infrastructure strategy	City Centre Development	Work has commenced on the Belfast Region Infrastructure Investment Plan to support the City Region Deal application Committee approval granted to progress with the Belfast

City Growth and Regeneration Committee				2017/18
Ref	Belfast Agenda Workstream and Milestones	Lead Director	Update (October to March)	
.a	Work with stakeholders to develop a brief for city infrastructure		Infrastructure Plan. Committee will be update lifecycle of the project.	d throughout the
.b	Secure committee approval to consider and progress		Stakeholder engagement with DfI ongoing on Infrastructure Plan, which is currently under pretain a consultant to deliver the plan. Deliver complete the plan in Aug 2019.	procurement to
.0	Secure committee approval to consider and progress		The Infrastructure Plan will support the LDP, the Belfast Agenda, the Regional Development Strategy and key funding deals currently being addressed by council, including the City Deal, by delivering a number of key deliverables.	
.2	Integrated Transport Strategy including York Street Interchange			
.a	Work with stakeholders to develop a brief for integrated transport	City Centre Development	relopment communities. Continued focus on key connections between neighbourhoods and the city centre.	
.b	Secure committee approval to consider and progress		Political agreement has been secured on potential funding options for the York St Interchange, although the process is currently stalled pending the outcome of judicial review on the procurement process.	
3.2.2	Develop an integrated city transport plan			
.1	Develop a City Centre Car parking strategy			
.a	Work with Dfl, Translink and others to consider key city car parking issues such as Tariffs for on-street parking, variable pricing, ticketing and payment systems, a pilot of on-street		The Car Park Strategy was agreed in Dec '17 date of May '18.	
.b	bay monitoring, and improved enforcement Secure Committee approval for the City Car Parking Strategy and next steps	City Centre Development	Establishment of Car Park Working Group is o discussions with DfI to agree the remit and w group members.	
.c	Encourage car park operators to invest in their facilities to achieve the Park Mark standard and improve spaces for disabled and family parking		Work ongoing around tariff and parking order through committee by C&NS. Public consultat Q2 2018.	

Ref	Belfast Agenda Workstream and Milestones	Lead Director	Update (October to March)
.d	Review BCCs off-street parking provision and BCC owned surface car parking provision		Continual engagement with C&NS to agree internal council work actions and required resource.
.e	Establish the city's Parking Forum to agree priorities for action		Review of Strategic Site Assessment approved by CGR in May '18, with results to be reported to committee in Oct '18.
2	Further refine and expand the Belfast Bike Scheme		
.a	Complete a workshop with Members to review the scheme and future options		The Members in June 2017 to inform the future approach for Belfast Bikes. This identified key issues in relation to: cost of
.b	Complete a pilot exercise to reduce vandalism and theft in conjunction with the Smart Cities Team and key partners	Development	scheme, pricing policy, coverage and potential expansion and vandalism and theft. A detailed update was presented to Committee in September 2017 to outline the future direction
.c	Complete a strategic review of the scheme and develop options for its future	Development	and update on the promotional efforts to increase usage and sponsorship, agree the relocation of docking stations where there is low usage and engagement with key stakeholders and communities to reduce vandalism and theft. The Belfast Bikes are also a pilot for the Smart Cities IPedal project to collect data that has the potential to be used for locating bikes that are missing from the system through theft or misuse and work is continuing to assess the results of the pilot.
3.2.3	Increase the supply of mixed tenure housing		
.1	Develop a City Centre Liveability strategy		A number of strands of work are currently being undertaken by different areas within the Council. In particular, the Local
.a	Scoping study to examine the issues to be considered in a city centre liveability strategy e.g. infrastructure		Development Plan is producing evidence to support the proposed housing growth options and is a key piece in creating
.b	Engage with key stakeholders		a viable and sustainable approach to city centre living.
.c	Working with Planning & Place, develop an agreed approach for sustainable model for mixed tenure housing	City Centre	A Strategic Site Assessment, approved by CGR in May '18, will consider public sector land holdings in the city centre and
.d	Identify suitable sites and opportunities for vacant space	Development	potential development opportunities, including options for the council in terms of how these sites are brought forward.
.e	Develop and agree an action plan		Market analysis for the residential sector will be undertaken in Q2 2018 and consideration will be given to the need for intervention/investment in this area. Officers have been working with the Housing Executive to help bring forward the Hope St site as a potential 'exemplar'

Ref	Belfast Agenda Workstream and Milestones	Lead Director	Update (October to March)
			development for City Centre Living.
			The opportunity to encourage residential development above retail units in the city centre has been considered, and officers have both reviewed the previous 'LOTS' programme and also engaged with Dublin City Council on their similar initiative.
3.3	Drive the physical and cultural regeneration of the city centre		
3.3.1	Develop a further world-class visitor attraction		
.1	Develop a further world-class visitor Belfast Story destination hub		A consultant has been appointed to undertake the Outline Business Case and will present to CGR in June, ahead of submission of the full OBC in September as part of the City
.a	Complete a concept study with stakeholder consultation	City Centre	Deal. Engagement with stakeholders from relevant agencies
.b	Complete procurement and create a feasibility team	Development	and the wider culture and tourism sector has been undertake
.c	Identify potential sites		and continues.
.d	Produce full business		Potential sites for the new visitor attraction have been identified and are being assessed.
3.4	Deliver key strategic physical projects and policies		
3.4.1	Deliver city centre regeneration and investment projects		
.1	Lead regeneration activity in the city centre and deliver City Centre Masterplans and Frameworks		The City Development Forum has been established in June 2017 and quarterly meetings have taken place since then. Attendees include representatives from the developer
.a	Establish and lead a City Development Forum		community and senior BCC CCDT and Property and Projects
.b	Initiate and support a regular Developer & Agents Forum	City Centre	representatives.
.c	Develop and deliver the City Centre Regeneration Engagement Strategy	Development	Proposals for 'technical advice' for residents to help them engage with development and regeneration in the city have
.d	Launch and deliver the new £18.7m City Centre Investment Fund to stimulate market demand		been presented to committee and discussion with members on this continues.

showcased development and investment opportunities in the city. VUCITY have opened a Belfast office to support roll out. VUCITY presented to CGR and Planning Committee in Q4 2018. They have also presented at two Developers Forums (June 2017 and February 2018 and are actively engaging with developers, architects and property agents across the city.

Page

East Bank Masterplan: maximising the riverfront.

development sites and connecting people and spaces

City Growth and Regeneration Committee Lead **Belfast Agenda Workstream and Milestones Update (October to March)** Ref Director The City Centre Investment Fund (CCIF) was launched on 15th Deliver masterplans and improvements for the 5 identified June 2017 seeking applications from developers with planning Special Action Areas and investigate options for further permission for significant office developments within the Masterplans/Frameworks Belfast City BMAP boundary. An information workshop was Work with DfC to bring forward the BT1 Gateway and Queens then held on 30th June with prospective applicants and Quay developments individual meetings were held with various potential applicants. Support and deliver key City Centre projects- Belfast The window for applications closed on 18th August with 8 Telegraph building, Belfast Story Destination hub, Transport applications having been received. This is deemed a good Hub response. Our evaluation provider, GVA, have scored Complete and release the VUCITY model and monitor applications and 5 applications have been declined. 2 of the 3 effectiveness remaining applications have withdrawn from the process, leaving 1 application remaining. This application will now proceed to Detailed Due Diligence phase. Consultation on the Inner North West has commenced, with the 12-week period scheduled to conclude on 8th May. Discussions with DfC around Queens Quay is ongoing as they develop options for bringing the site forward; other sites in the Inner North West are being discussed as part of the development of the masterplan for the area. The Belfast Telegraph building proposals have been launched under the brand 'The Sixth' and engagement with the planning Ongoing support, input and coordination across council teams service continues. and external partners via the Joint Regeneration Board BCC has been working on developing a 3D model of Belfast, in partnership with VUCITY. The model has been expanded to cover 52 square kilometres of Belfast. VUCITY was incorporated into the Belfast at MIPIM 2018 stand and

City Centre

Development

City Growth and Regeneration Committee			2017/1
Ref	Belfast Agenda Workstream and Milestones	Lead Director	Update (October to March)
.a	Finalise the draft East Bank action plan		The Eastbank Masterplan consultation completed in Septemb
.b	Public consultation on the draft plan		2017 and the results were presented to CG&R committee in December 2017.
.c	Secure Committee approval on the revised East Bank plan and agree implementation plan		Following an SEA & HRA survey of the Masterplan it was agreed that a full SEA & HRA assessment would be required. These assessments were complete in February 2018 and the 12 week consultation period will be complete in May 2018. Pending the findings of the public consultation the masterpla will be completed and reported to committee in August 2018. The final strategy will be used as a framework for development across the East Bank and there may be environmental issues given the previous use of the land - it will therefore be subject to a Strategic Environmental Assessment.
.3	Linen Quarter Masterplan: creating a more vibrant business and leisure area		
.a	Procure and deliver the planning and design proposals	City Centre	BCC continue to promote Streets Ahead and have supported DfC in progressing SA5 to design stage to be 'shovel ready' pending budget allocation. CCDT continue to monitor & engage to ensure capture of developer contributions within tarea.
.4	Deliver City Centre Animation projects	Development	
.a	Internal review to identify city animation provision and opportunities to coordinate, improve and align it		An internal review has been completed with options scoped. Approval granted from CG&R to allocate £240k/annum for two transfer and approval of the complete forms.
.b	Identify a mix of suitable activities and priority locations across the city to align with the longer term special action areas		years to provide animation in Castle St & North St. CCDT continue to engage with communities and businesses develop the specification with a planned rollout of
.c	Present proposals for committee consideration and approval		interventions commencing summer 2018.
.d	Commence the city animation programme		
.5	Deliver the City Centre Investment Fund (CCIF)	6.1 6 .	
.a	Launch Fund and seek application	City Centre Development	The City Centre Investment Fund (CCIF) was launched on 15
.b	Evaluate applications	_ Development	June 2017. See 3.4.1 above, for further details.

Ref	Belfast Agenda Workstream and Milestones	Lead Director	Update (October to March)
.C	Approve funding for successful applications		
3.5	Attract more tourists		
3.5.1	Deliver the integrated tourism strategy.		
.1	Deliver the actions for 2017-18 in the Tourism Strategy		Business tourism investment continues in partnership with Visit Belfast. This includes attracting conferences to the City as well
.a	Enhance the Business Tourism off by developing new guidelines for the conference subvention scheme and, with Tourism NI, put in place a new Conference Subvention fund for 2017-18		as the Conference Support Scheme. With regard to business and conference tourism deliverables over the last financial year; 79,300 bed nights were generated which contributed over £45million to the City's economy in terms of spend on
.b	Develop Local Tourism Infrastructure by exploring opportunities with key partners to develop tourism assets across the city such as tourism trails, support for marketing and customer service improvements, online presence, etc.		venues, accommodation, hospitality and leisure activities. The East & West Belfast City Connections community tourism initiative started in October 2018. This has included employment of two part-time tourism officers in Fáilte Feirste
.c	Tailor and improve the city's tourism Research and Analysis to generate improved visitor insights and support for initiatives such as hotel development; utilising the emerging Smart City framework		Thiar and Eastside Partnership; and the formation of a Local Stakeholder Forum. A tourism training needs analysis has been completed in both areas which has informed the development of a local tourism capacity-building programme.
.d	Improve Visitor Management by working with Visit Belfast to provide suitable secure overnight coach parking	Development	Under product development, Fáilte Feirste Thiar have installed a new digital tourism information touchscreen at Cultúrlann and Eastside will be developing a new website which will be
.e	Maximise the city's Food Tourism offer in partnership with Tourism NI by developing a food and drink plan and delivering a number of food-related events		linked to the touchscreens in the visitor centre. A Tourism Challenge led by the Smart Cities team and funded by Invest NI has been developed in partnership with BCC, Tourism NI and Visit Belfast. The focus of the challenge is around how we build a more accurate understanding of visitor behaviour and gather real time data. Three collaborative networks have been appointed to take forward different proposals. They will appoint expert facilitators in the new financial year to help them develop their proposals. Interim Coach Parking is now in place off Boucher Road and the Crumlin Road Gaol. Discussions are continuing regarding a long-term solution (permanent coach park).

Ref	Belfast Agenda Workstream and Milestones	Lead Director	Update (October to March)
			BelFeast Food & Drink Festival took place from 23-25 March 18 in the City's Cathedral Quarter. The festival showcased local chefs, restaurants and artisan producers. It comprised a variety of events including an artisan food market & street food hub, a food theatre in the Mac, food & drink tours, special dining events and a number of other events for the family. Visitor numbers were excellent, with approximately 11,000 attendees at the market and various events. Visitor survey feedback generated 100% positive response to question of BelFeast becoming an annual/ regular event. 100% of artisan food stall-holders & traders said they would like to see BelFeast return as an annual or regular event.
.2	Deliver three Twilight Markets in St George's Market	Development	The Twilight Markets continue to thrive, with each of the three seasonally themed Twilight Markets in 2017-18 attracting a footfall of approx. 20,000. Consequently, Council has approved to increase the Twilight Market events in 2018-19 to 4 – May (Nashville themed), July/August, November and December. St Georges continues to provide a great trading space for over 180 small businesses and traders each day. Footfall continues to increase year on year in St George's weekend Market - up by 15%. Customers are increasingly visiting the market for the experience so we have enhanced this with more live music, promoting new bands, chef demos plus the addition of ' <i>Make and Take'</i> workshops for children to create a more family friendly environment.
			The new staffing structure is in place and a Self-Payment kiosk installed so traders can make rent payments into a kiosk on every market day. This has given the traders more flexibility when paying their rent and freed up staff time. There are currently 8 small markets operating throughout the city and some interest from other potential operators for markets in areas not currently occupied with markets.
.3	Carry out a Mid-term review of Tourism Strategy	Development	

City Growth and Regeneration Committee

Ref	Belfast Agenda Workstream and Milestones	Lead Director	Update (October to March)
.a	Commission a review of the strategy to align with impending Regional Tourism Strategy, the growth in hotel developments and to take account of the impact of Brexit and to support delivery of the Belfast Agenda ambitions		The mid-term review of the Integrated Tourism Strategy was completed in February 2018, with an update provided to Committee in March 2018. It identifies a number of areas in need of targeted investment and partner engagement, namely:
.b	Engage with key stakeholders		People and Skills; Product Development/ Quality and Standards; Data, Insights and Innovation and Infrastructure
.c	Develop the Tourism Strategy and next steps in line with the review recommendations		Development and establishment of a high-level Belfast Tourism co-ordination group.
.4	Deliver the annual City Events Programme		
.a	Deliver the Spring programme of events including: the World Series Ice Hockey Championships, Belfast City Marathon; Lord Mayor's Day; and the UK National Pipe Band Championships		All events for the year were successfully delivered. In total, the main event programme attracted an audience of almost 318,000 people into the city. This helped to create an economic benefit of £16.8 million.
.b	Deliver the Summer programme of events including: the World 24 Hour Endurance Race; the 2017 UEFA U19 Women's Euro's, the 2017 Women's Rugby World Cup and the Autumn Fair	Development	Particular highlights include £7.2 million from the Women's' Rugby World Cup, £3.8 million from the Women's' Under 19 Euro Championship, 80,000 people at the Maritime Festival and 69,000 at the Marathon.
.C	Deliver the Autumn programme of events including: Halloween and the Christmas Lights Switch-On		The Event programme for 2018-19 was agreed by Committee in February, 2018. In addition to the regular annual events,
.d	Deliver the St Patrick's Day events		this year the City will host the Radio 2 Folk Awards, the BBC Biggest Weekend, the BBC Proms in the Park and the World Vespa Gathering.
.5	Develop a new approach to events, festivals and culture		
.a	Agree specification and scope of this project		A report was presented to CG&R Committee in March 2018.
.b	Commence Project		The findings and recommendations were endorsed as the general direction of travel and Officers are now engaging with
.c	Identify best practice in other cities through relevant case studies	Development	key partner organisations and working to ensure that programmes of work for key related strategies (Tourism,
.d	Engage with key city stakeholders		Cultural Framework and the way forward for the European
.e	Develop options and secure committee approval		Capital of Culture) align.
	Working & learning		

Ref	Belfast Agenda Workstream and Milestones	Lead Director	Update (October to March)
4.1	Address educational inequalities		
4.1.1	Engage with schools to address educational inequalities		
.1	Address educational underachievement of young people		Following the consultation with the education sector, activities to help address educational inequalities were approved by
.a	Consult with the education sector & key stakeholders, particularly career services		Committee in August 17. Following this, officers have commissioned and implemented:
.b	Engage with and understand the experience of those who are furthest from the labour market, and specifically young people who are or are at risk of becoming NEET and develop new early intervention programmes		 Career development programme Paid work experience programme for up to 250 young people to 4-6 weeks in the summer of 2018. Digital skills programme for up to 600 young people and
.c	Develop options to help address the challenges around low skills and poor educational attainment e.g. share learning from schools that are performing well; using community facilities for educational workshops, careers advice etc		their teachers. In total, 5,328 young people have participated in employability and skills development activities in schools across the City, including:
.d	Deliver early engagement interventions for those who are furthest removed from the labour market	Development	 Development Awards and 'Get Started' employability programmes for young people through Princes Trust with 251 participants and 223 achieving accreditations. Careers events including jobsfairs with 3992 people accessing job opportunities and careers guidance advice to develop a clear career pathway. Active Communities Network's early intervention pilot engaged with 358 young people with 75 gaining a positive outcome (such as an accreditation), 11 moving into further training and 32 gaining employment. Sport Changes Life's early intervention pilot engaged with 59 young people with 55 gaining a positive outcome (such as an accreditation) with 6 moving into further training and 9 gaining employment.
4.2	Address barriers to employment		
4.2.1	Establish a city pledge for our young people and a commitment to being a learning city		

Ref	Belfast Agenda Workstream and Milestones	Lead Director	Update (October to March)	
.1	Develop and agree a City Pledge		Include Youth were appointed to carry out respleted person in Q	
.a	Undertake feasibility work to explore options for the introduction of a "city pledge" for young people.		This has involved qualitative research (focus groups a interviews) with 174 young people and 65 adults (tea	groups and
.b	Continue to contribute to the Belfast Strategic Partnership's Lifelong Learning Group		employers, and voluntary and community sec survey to young people. The Council's Youth	Forum were also
.c	Explore the potential of the Belfast Strategic Partnership advancing a UNESCO City of Lifelong Learning	Development	engaged in the research. This work will inform approach to the development and implementate pledge that 'commits the city to developing conformed education, employment and training for our A report will be brought back to Committee of the research. Following the UNESCO: City of Lifelong Learning submission, Belfast Strategic Partnership are work to develop the associated action plan.	ation of city cherent pathways or young people'. or completion of or application
4.3	Enhance and increase the skill levels of our residents and attract and retain even more skilled people			
4.3.1	Deliver an integrated approach to employment and skills			
.1	Deliver Year 2 of the Employability and Skills Framework		Across the various Employability & Skills progressy the council, 4351 residents have accessed	
.a	Continue support for the five European Social Fund (ESF) and two match-funded employability projects into their third and final year of delivery targeting the unemployed and economically inactive		interventions of whom 1339 have entered em employment. Additionally, over 3103 training have been supported with 490 progressing or education or training.	ployment/self- accreditations
.b	Independently review ESF financially supported by the Council to assess their value for money and alignment to Belfast Agenda and Employability and Skills Framework priorities	Development	Support continues for the five ESF projects ar ESF projects, which are on track and will be o throughout the remainder of this financial year Following the independent review of our approximation.	ngoing ır.
.c	Collaboratively, across the Employability & Skills network recommend a Council approach to future ESF		funding ESF employability projects, a competi structured decision making process was imple	tive and

City Growth and Regeneration Committee				2017/18
Ref	Belfast Agenda Workstream and Milestones	Lead Director	Update (October to March)	
			was used for ESF Call 2 match funding request match funding application was completed by and scored and ranked by a selection panel the Council officers and Urban Villages (who proving funding with council). As a result, and follow CGR Committee in February 2018, the organism their application to the £240,000 allocation are Springboard, Workforce, USEL, Specialists	each applicant nat included ided co-match ing approval of sations successful of match funding
.2	Employability and Skills Board			
.a	Establish a city-wide Employability & Skills Forum, or working groups, aligned to the Belfast Agenda governance arrangements and Economic Growth Forum	Development	Development of the Employability and Skills F and forms part of the discussions with the De Communities as part of their 'Local Works' co the Programme for Government. This progres the governance arrangements for the Belfast solidified and the Belfast Region City Deal Em Skills Proposition have been finalised. The Employability & Skills Team have establis communications with DfC and DfE to ensure a	epartment for mmitment within as further once Agenda have aployability &
4.3.2	Maximise the benefits of our higher and further education offer		approach across the city.	
.1	Attract talent to FHE institutions		Officers work closely with the new Belfast City	y for Investment;
.a	Work with Invest NI to engage with new employers to identify specific skills challenges and invest in support services to		Soft Landing Service and use this to engage videntify specific skills challenges to ensure the adequate skills pipeline.	
.b	Work with the major further and higher education institutions to ensure alignment of course provision to meet industry needs	Development	In addition to the Employer Skills Survey, resunderemployment/ unemployment and a Belf Barometer has been undertaken. These informed Employability & Skills interventions. Officers are engaging with universities to desimplement approaches to develop the employ graduates and ensure they have access to me experience opportunities.	ast Skills m the direction of ign and rability skills of

ity C	ty Growth and Regeneration Committee			2017/18
Ref	Belfast Agenda Workstream and Milestones	Lead Director	Update (October to March)	
4.4	Match people and skills to opportunities across Belfast			
4.4.1	Deliver an Employability Pathway Model (aka 'Belfast Works')			
.1	Employability Pathway		The recruitment process for the Employability including the manager and assistant manager	
.a	Further develop & secure support for the Belfast employability pathway model		complete (2 posts are currently outstanding).	
.b	Scope resources and potential alignment to existing programme activity		 The Employability Pathway Model is being implemented a further developed: It will involve a phased approach to its development focusing initially on creating better alignment betwee existing initiatives and filling the gaps with new 	
.c	Co-design an Employability Pathway Model			ment between
.d	Deliver Phase 1 of the Belfast Employability Pathway model identifying key sectors for intervention and engaging employers	Development	 interventions as and when required i.e. Academies. Phase 1 development of the pathway modelivery of Employment Academies. Seed delivery launched, or scheduled, this find to the hospitality, construction, healthca public transportation sectors. Planning for Academies for 2018/19 included engage employability stakeholders as well as Commembers. The 2018/19 workplan including implementation of employment academic childminding, haulage, tourism etc. as we extension within hospitality, construction public transport sectors. This is being developed as part of range including the development of a Local Wowith DfC. This will be able to progress for governance arrangements for the Belfass solidified and the Belfast Region City De & Skills proposition has been finalised. 	odel includes the toral models of ancial year relate re, retail and or Employment ment with all iR committee les the further es within retail, rell as the further n, healthcare and of activities orks approach urther once the tagenda have al's Employability

Ref	Belfast Agenda Workstream and Milestones	Lead Director	Update (October to March)
			the Employability & Skills Team have established structured communications with DfC and DfE to ensure an aligned approach across the city.
			Work has also been undertaken – in partnership with the five other councils within the Belfast Region City Deal – to create and agree an Employability & Skills Proposition that underpins the other pillars of the city deal (infrastructure, digital, innovation and tourism). This will require negotiation across DfC and DfE to align their budgets to the Employability & Skills Proposition within the city deal. To ensure an intelligence-led approach, we have commissioned UUEPC to complete a Skills Barometer for the Belfast City Region to underpin this Employability & Skills Proposition.
4.5	Reduce poverty and economic inactivity		
4.5.1	Leverage the power of Belfast's anchor institutions and city partners		
.1	Harness public sector procurement power	Property & Projects / Development	Social clauses are continuing to be included within appropriate Council contracts and officers screen contracts for social clause inclusion as well as providing PMU with advice and guidance on including social value as part of the evaluation criteria for contracts. As part of a review of the Social Clause Policy officers are investigating the potential of developing a Social Value Procurement Framework, as an evolution of this policy. Discussions are ongoing with officers in Planning to ensure that the Employability & Skills element of the draft Developer Contributions Framework is informed by, and aligned to, the approach agreed for the Employability & Skills team. Officers are working closely with the Strategic Investment Board to provide a cohesive and seamless employment pathway to meet the needs of social clauses in other public body contracts. Agreements have been reached in a number of developments across the city (e.g. Belfast Transport Hub,
.a	Continue to screen and include social clauses in appropriate council contracts in accordance with Council policy		
.b	Review the current Social Clause Policy		
.c	Work with key city partners to develop a "Social Value Procurement Framework"		
.d	Work with Planning & Place to generate opportunities for employment-related developer contributions		

City Growth and Regeneration Committee

Ref	Belfast Agenda Workstream and Milestones	Lead Director	Update (October to March)
			Royal Maternity rebuild etc.) where council is acting as a platform to connect employment opportunities with those furthest from the labour market and to ensure they have the skills and attributes – through the delivery of Construction Employment Academies – to gain sustainable employment.

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 6c

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 6 of the Local Government Act (Northern Ireland) 2014.

Document is Restricted

